## CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Cabinet**held on Tuesday, 6th February, 2018 at Committee Suite 1, 2 & 3, Westfields,
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

### **PRESENT**

Councillor Rachel Bailey (Chairman)
Councillor L Wardlaw (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors A Arnold, P Bates, J Clowes, J P Findlow, J Saunders and D Stockton

## **Members in Attendance**

Councillors Rhoda Bailey, G Baxendale, J Bratherton, E Brooks, C Browne, S Corcoran, M Deakin, S Edgar, D Flude, S Gardiner, G Hayes, L Jeuda, G Merry, B Moran, J Nicholas, S Pochin, J Rhodes, M Simon, L Smetham, A Stott, M Warren and G Williams

### Officers in Attendance

Kath O'Dwyer, Frank Jordan, Jan Willis, Mark Palethorpe, Dan Dickinson, Sara Barker, Alex Thompson and Paul Mountford

## **Apologies**

Councillor L Durham

### 93 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor J P Findlow declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 10 (Treasury Management Strategy) as a member of the Local Authorities Mutual Investment Trust.

All members present who were members of the Cheshire Fire Authority declared non-pecuniary interests in relation to Item 6 (Second Pump Crewe Fire Station).

### 94 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

Graham Goodwin referred to a statement made at the Council meeting in July 2017 by the then Portfolio Holder for Finance and Communities prior to the approval of £2.4M for the ANSA Environmental and asked why no Cabinet member present at the meeting had corrected the statement. The Leader responded that the matter had been discussed on a number of occasions and a full reply had been given.

Caroline O'Brien, Chief Executive, Community and Voluntary Services, referred to a six month gap between the ending of some early help and prevention service contracts at the end of March and the commencement

of the proposed new framework for the commissioning of such services. She asked if the £1M New Homes Bonus funding for 2018/19 could be used to support the delivery of services until the new framework was established so that there was no gap in service delivery. She also asked for confirmation that it would be the Council's intention to maintain funding at £550k for 2019/2020. The Leader indicated that the response to the questions would be given later in the meeting during consideration of the reports on the budget (MTFS) and the Early Help Framework.

Sue Helliwell referred to the occurrence of dog fouling in the Borough and suggested an innovative solution which involved the use of dog waste to light street lanterns. She provided details of the person behind the scheme to enable the Council to contact him. The Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Integration referred to the Public Spaces Protection Order which the Council would be rolling out from the middle of February to address dog fouling across the Borough. The Portfolio Holder thanked Sue Helliwell for her suggestion which would be investigated further and the Council would get back to her in due course.

Cllr David Kidd, Chairman of Disley Parish Council, thanked the Council for deciding not to close Disley Library following the recent consultation. He said that the Parish Council was eager to work with Cheshire East Council to ensure the continuation of the Library into the future.

Carol Jones thanked Councillor Paul Bates for his help with the bus service review in Crewe and Nantwich which had resulted in the main bus route, the 6E to Leighton Hospital, being retained. She then referred to increasing levels of homelessness and people living in filthy conditions, and asked if the Council would work with other agencies to provide social housing for people with mental health problems. The Leader and the Portfolio Holders for Housing, Planning and Regeneration, Adult Care and Integration, Children and Families, and Health all spoke at length on the various initiatives the Council was pursuing to address the issues referred to and they highlighted some of the significant achievements to date.

### 95 QUESTIONS TO CABINET MEMBERS

Councillor J Rhodes referred to Article 4 of the Local Plan which dealt with HMOs and other rented accommodation, and asked when these documents would be brought to Council. The Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Regeneration responded that there was impending legislation on the licensing of HMOs which should be coming into force in April, following which a report would be submitted to Cabinet. The Leader asked that members be informed when there was clarity on the legislation.

Councillor A Stott asked why it had taken so long for work to be undertaken on the Silk Road toucan crossing in Bollington. She also expressed concern about the quality of work on highways, specifically in relation to the filling of potholes. The Portfolio Holder for Environment undertook to respond on the Silk Road crossing issue in writing. With

regard to potholes, these were dealt with in a systematic way, with safely being the main priority. He explained some of the practical issues involved in filling potholes, particularly in bad weather, which sometimes required a return visit within a relatively short time.

Councillor S Pochin asked the Portfolio Holder for Health to reconsider the decision to withdraw the refunding of parking fees for users of the Council's leisure facilities. The Leader indicated that the Portfolio Holder would respond when the MTFS report was considered later in the meeting.

Councillor L Jeuda asked if the Council had any plans to follow the example of Halton Borough Council in taking over failing care homes to manage on a not for profit basis. The Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Integration responded that the Council had no such plans at the moment but did use the expertise of its staff to give advice and assistance to care homes. However, she did not rule out considering any options in the future.

Councillor M Warren asked if the Council was considering alternative methods of filling potholes to replace those techniques that appeared to be less successful at the moment. The Portfolio Holder for Environment responded that the consideration of alternative innovative techniques was an ongoing process.

Councillor J Bratherton referred to an inappropriate comment made by another member in relation to homelessness at a briefing on the subject last week. At the request of the Leader, the Acting Director of Legal Services advised that, without commenting on the particular case in question, member training sessions in general were private events. The Leader expressed concern that the matter had been raised in a public arena at the Cabinet meeting. The Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Regeneration added that the member concerned had expressed regret at the choice of words used at the training event.

At the invitation of the Leader, the Acting Chief Executive, in welcoming the outcome of the culture review by Sarah Messenger, and the Council's commitment to moving forward on the recommendations, advised that one of the key findings of the review had been the conduct and tone of officers and members, which was a key contributor to the culture of the organisation. If members' conduct and tone towards one another was of a nature that was inappropriate, that then generated a fear among staff that they too would be spoken to and dealt with in a similar manner. It was therefore incumbent on us all as officers and members to treat one another with the respect that we would hope to receive ourselves if we were to turn the culture and make the improvements to the Council to which we were all committed.

Councillor D Flude, as chairman of the Crewe Heritage Trust, asked if the Council would assist in bringing an engine back to Crewe and accommodating it in the Municipal Buildings. She also asked why Article 4

relating to HMOs could not be brought in now as it had been in the City of Chester. The Leader responded that the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Regeneration would assist with the return of the engine to Crewe. She also asked the Portfolio Holder to look into the matter raised by Cllr Flude in relation to the use of Article 4 powers by Cheshire West and Chester Council and to respond in writing.

Councillor M Deakin sought an update on a request for waiting restrictions in Audley Road and Sandbach Road South, Alsager. The Portfolio Holder for Environment responded that the Council was dealing with a large number of traffic management requests which had to be prioritised according to the extent of the traffic problem. Councillor Deakin would receive an update on his particular request as part of that process.

Councillor G Baxendale commented that Cheshire and Wirral Trust would be starting a consultation at the end of the month on the closure of Millbrook House. He asked Cabinet to look at the consultation and to secure some guarantees from the Trust. The Portfolio Holder for Health responded that scrutiny were looking at the matter and that the consultation would be watched closely.

Councillor S Corcoran asked if the current recruitment freeze could be lifted particularly in relation to air quality. The Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Regeneration responded that there were exceptions to the recruitment freeze in certain circumstances, which included air quality. At the Chairman's request, the Acting Chief Executive added that the Council had a responsibility to manage its resources responsibly and the impact of any recruitment freeze would be monitored carefully. There was a process in place to allow exemptions where appropriate.

### 96 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

### **RESOLVED**

That the minutes of the meeting held on 5<sup>th</sup> December 2017 be approved as a correct record.

#### 97 SECOND PUMP CREWE FIRE STATION

Cabinet considered a report of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee in relation to a proposal by Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service to reduce the utilisation of the second pump (fire engine) at Crewe Fire station from whole time to "on-call" status.

Councillor M Simon, Chairman of the Committee, attended the Cabinet meeting and spoke on this matter.

#### RESOLVED

That resolution 2 of the resolutions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee be supported and the Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service and Cheshire Fire Authority be informed that the Leader of the Council and the Cabinet cannot support a proposal for the 2nd pump at Crewe Fire Station to become on-call.

# 98 SYDNEY ROAD REPLACEMENT BRIDGE - PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

Cabinet considered a report on the steps required to implement the construction phase of the Sydney Road Replacement Bridge (Crewe) Project.

The Chairman of the Environment and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee had agreed that the decision on this matter should be treated as urgent and that the call-in process should not apply.

### **RESOLVED**

- 1. authorises the Executive Director of Place, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Environment, to:
  - (a) enter into an Implementation Agreement with Network Rail for them to deliver construction of the scheme through their design and build supply chain framework; and
  - (b) approve acceptance of the newly-constructed bridge into Council ownership upon payment of an appropriate commuted sum by Network Rail and to enter into an Asset Transfer Agreement, a Two Party Bridge Agreement, Option Agreements and any Easement and other related agreements relating to use of and rights over Network Rail's land, with Network Rail as necessary;
- 2. authorises the Executive Director of Place, in consultation with the Director of Legal Services, to enter into discussions with land owners, utility companies, Network Rail and all third parties in relation to acquiring the necessary land and acquiring and granting rights to deliver the scheme and to delegate the negotiation and entering into of any necessary supporting legal agreements (including but not limited to option agreements, permanent land take, temporary land take/use of third party land, licences, easements (granting and acquiring), rights of support, rights to go onto land to do works, rights of access and rights for services, wayleaves and oversail agreements) and any variations required to those agreements during the course of the project;

- authorises the Executive Director Place, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Environment, to proceed with the scheme on the basis of the proposed funding arrangement as outlined in Section 7 of the report and approve the underwriting, in principle, of any necessary gap funding required to deliver the scheme due to timing of receipt of Section 106 contributions;
- 4. further to the authorisation at Cabinet on 13<sup>th</sup> October 2015, authorises the Executive Director Place to proceed with the use of the Council's Compulsory Purchase Powers (CPO) to acquire land to construct the scheme and to approve the following specific recommendations:
  - authorise the Executive Director of Place in consultation with the Director of Legal Services to take all appropriate actions to secure the confirmation of the contemplated orders including:
    - (a) the making of an order (or orders) under Sections 239, 240, 246, 250 and 260 of the Highways Act 1980 and all other powers as appropriate for the compulsory purchase of land and rights required for the construction of the project;
    - (b) taking all necessary action to secure the making, submission to the Secretary of State for confirmation and (if confirmed) implementation, of the CPO including the publication and service of all relevant notices and for the Director of Legal Services to secure the presentation of the Council's case at any public inquiry and the subsequent service of Notices to Treat and Notices of Entry or, as the case may be the execution of General Vesting Declarations;
    - (c) negotiating and entering into agreements and undertakings with the owners of any interest in the CPO and any objectors to the confirmation of the Orders setting out the terms for the withdrawal of objections to the Orders including where appropriate, the inclusion in and/or exclusion from the CPO of land or new rights and to authorise the Director of Legal Services to agree, draw up, and to sign all necessary legal documents to record such agreements and undertakings;
    - (d) In the event that any question of compensation is referred to the Upper Tribunal (Lands Chamber), the Director of Legal Services taking all necessary steps in connection with the conduct and, if appropriate, settlement of such proceedings; and
    - (e) authorising the Head of Assets to negotiate and approve the payment of relevant and reasonable professional fees incurred by landowners and others with compensateable interests in taking professional advice in connection with the acquisition of their interests required for the scheme and related compensation claims;

- 5. notes the previous Cabinet consideration and the associated engagement with elected members on this project as outlined in paragraph 5.17 of the report; and
- endorses the report author's analysis regarding the urgency of this decision and his view that the delay caused by any call-in process would seriously prejudice the Council's and the public's interests.

## 99 THIRD QUARTER REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 2017/18

Cabinet considered a report on the third quarter review of performance for 2017/18.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Communication reported the comments of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee as appended to these minutes.

### **RESOLVED**

That Cabinet notes the third quarter review of 2017/18 performance, in relation to the following issues:

- The summary of performance against the Council's six Strategic Outcomes (Section 1);
- The projected service revenue and capital outturn positions, overall financial stability of the Council, and the impact on the Council's reserves position (Section 2);
- The delivery of the overall capital programme (Section 2, paragraphs 156 to 165, Appendix 4 and Appendix 5);
- Fully funded supplementary capital estimates up to £500,000 approved in accordance with Finance Procedure Rules (Appendix 6);
- Capital virements up to £1,000,000 approved in accordance with Finance Procedure Rules (Appendix 6);
- Changes to Capital Budgets made in accordance with the Finance Procedure Rules (Appendix 9);
- Treasury management investments and performance (Appendix 10);
- Supplementary revenue estimates to be funded by additional specific grant (Appendix 11).
- Management of invoiced debt (Appendix 12);
- Use of earmarked reserves (Appendix 13); and
- Update on workforce development and staffing (Section 3).

Cabinet considered a report on the Medium Term Financial Strategy for Cheshire East Council for the years 2018/19 to 2020/21.

The Portfolio Holder referred to an error in the report at paragraph 1.6 in that the term 'Band D' should be deleted from the final sentence as this related to an average property. The increase per week for an average Band D property was £1.53.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Communication reported the comments of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee as appended to these minutes. The Committee's comments were considered by Cabinet.

Earlier in the meeting, Councillor S Pochin had asked the Portfolio Holder for Health to reconsider the decision to withdraw the refunding of parking fees for users of the Council's leisure facilities. The Portfolio Holder for Health responded that the matter was under consideration and she was unable to comment further at this stage.

Caroline O'Brien had raised a question earlier in the meeting regarding the use of New Homes Bonus funding to support the delivery of early help and prevention services until the new framework was in operation. The Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Infrastructure envisaged the new framework becoming operational in April or May. Support mechanisms were in place to assist voluntary organisations whose contracts would be ending at the end of March. The Leader stressed the need to have the new model framework in relation to New Homes Bonus funding ready before the next Council meeting and asked the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Communication to set up an urgent task and finish group in liaison with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee for this purpose.

## **RESOLVED**

- 1. recommends to Council the items at Appendix A to the report; and
- 2. notes:
  - (a) the summary results of the Budget Consultation, attached at Appendix B and the Budget Engagement exercise undertaken by the Council, as set out in the attached (Appendix C, Annex 2);
  - (b) the comments of the Council's Interim Executive Director of Corporate Services (Section 151 Officer), contained within the MTFS Report, regarding the robustness of estimates and level of reserves held by the Council based on these budget proposals

- (Appendix C, Comment from the Interim Executive Director of Corporate Services);
- (c) the risk assessment detailed in the MTFS Report (Appendix C, Annex 5);
- (d) the development of a Capital Strategy as set out in the attached (Appendix C, Annex 10). This is linked to the Treasury Management and Investment Strategies and these will continue to be developed in accordance with the revised guidance for local authority investments during 2018/19. The strategy contains the programme of capital investment for 2018/19 to 2020/21. The programme may vary to take advantage of external funding opportunities, maximise private sector investment, prudential borrowing considerations, operational capacity and to ensure optimal delivery of the overall programme;
- (e) that the Council's Finance Procedure Rules will always apply should any changes in spending requirements be identified (Appendix C, Annex 10); and
- (f) that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the proposal to earmark £2m to create a specific "New Homes Bonus Community Fund" to be used over the next two financial years. To also note that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is willing to assist Cabinet by working on the details of a specific scheme to allocate funds.

# 101 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND MRP STATEMENT 2018/19

Cabinet considered a report on the Treasury Management Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Statement for 2018/19.

### **RESOLVED**

That

- Council be recommended to approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, including the MRP Statement for 2018/19 to 2020/21 (Appendix A to the report); and
- an Investment Strategy Board be established as set out in the report to develop an enhanced Capital Strategy and Investment Strategy for approval by Cabinet and Council as required by the CIPFA Prudential Code 2017 and statutory guidance on local authority investments.

# 102 UPDATE ON SCHOOLS FUNDING AND THE LOCAL SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA FOR 2018/19

Cabinet considered a report providing an update on schools funding in Cheshire East.

### **RESOLVED**

**That Cabinet** 

- 1. approves the proposed schools funding formula for 2018/19 following a recommendation by Schools Forum;
- 2. approves:
  - (a) the use of the existing Cheshire East schools funding formula;
  - (b) the allocation of the additional growth provided (£2.8m) using the basic per pupil element of the formula in the current ratios;
  - (c) the use of -1.5% as the minimum funding guarantee. Meaning that no school can lose more than 1.5% per annum excluding pupil number changes; and
  - (d) the transfer of 0.5% of funding from the schools block to the high needs block to address pressures in that area and fund projects to achieve sustainability; and
- approves that the current Cheshire East formula continue to be used as this will protect small and rural primary schools over the next two years. It is noted that the schools finance team will monitor and challenge the plans from maintained schools to ensure that they prepare for and manage the implications of change when NFF is introduced.

# 103 SUSTAINABLE MODES OF TRAVEL TO SCHOOLS (SMOTS) STRATEGY

Cabinet considered a report on progress with producing a new Sustainable Modes of Travel to School Strategy which would provide a framework to support schools when they were implementing their School Travel Plans.

### **RESOLVED**

**That Cabinet** 

1. approves the draft Sustainable Modes of Travel to Schools strategy (Appendix 1 to the report);

- notes the costs associated with implementation of the strategy will be outlined in detail when the final strategy is presented to Cabinet for approval;
- 3. agrees that a Borough-wide public consultation takes place seeking views on the draft SMOTS Strategy, with the decision on all final consultation materials being delegated to the Executive Director of Place in consultation with the Executive Director for People; and
- 4. notes that the outcomes of the consultation and any resultant changes to the draft Strategy will be reported to, and approved by, Cabinet in due course.

#### 104 EARLY HELP FRAMEWORK

Cabinet considered a report seeking approval for the setting up of an Early Help Framework across the Council's People Directorate in order to streamline the procurement of early help services.

Having given further consideration, in the light of members' comments, to the funding gap with some voluntary service contracts, the Leader made a commitment to address the utilisation of the New Homes Bonus funding in relation to the Early Help Framework and to work urgently with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Communication on a task and finish group in collaboration with scrutiny members to establish a model framework in time for the next Council meeting.

#### **RESOLVED**

That Cabinet

- 1. endorses the co-production of the early help framework with statutory partners, voluntary, community and faith sector organisations, and other providers;
- approves the procurement of a Dynamic Purchasing System in order to award contracts for services provided through the Early Help Framework; and
- 3. delegates authority to award contracts to the Executive Director of People.

### 105 **BUILDING AN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO**

Cabinet considered a report on the development of a strategy to enable the Council to invest in commercial property.

#### **RESOLVED**

- authorises the Interim Executive Director of Corporate Services to set (and amend from time to time) the investment criteria in consultation with the Executive Director of Place, the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Communications, and the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Regeneration;
- authorises the Executive Director of Place to commission commercial agents with the required skills and expertise to actively search for investment properties;
- authorises the Executive Director of Place to commission external commercial advisors with the required skills and expertise to prepare detailed business cases to support any future decision regarding the acquisition of investment properties that are identified;
- 4. authorises the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Regeneration in consultation with The Director of Legal Services, the Interim Executive Director of Corporate Services and the Executive Director of Place to take any action considered necessary or desirable to establish and/or utilise an alternative service delivery vehicle (or vehicles) to deliver the investment portfolio;
- 5. authorises the Executive Director of Place in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Housing Planning and Regeneration, the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Communications, the Director of Legal Services and the Interim Executive Director of Corporate Services to acquire the freehold or leasehold interest in commercial property identified in accordance with the investment criteria approved by virtue of 1 above and the advice received by virtue of 3 above; and
- 6. authorises the Executive Director of Place in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Housing Planning and Regeneration and the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Communication to establish management arrangements for any newly acquired assets.

## 106 MUTUALLY AGREED RESIGNATION SCHEME (MARS)

Cabinet considered a report seeking approval for the introduction of a Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) policy and guidance.

The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Policy and Legal Services advised that employees subject to disciplinary procedures would not be excluded from applying for the scheme but that if they were still subject to such procedures at the time the panel considered their application, the application would be declined.

The Portfolio Holder reported the receipt of two detailed letters from Unison, objecting to the scheme as they believed that there were more

appropriate and robust methods of organisational change which could be used if necessary.

The Portfolio Holder stressed that the scheme was entirely voluntary and provided a greater degree of flexibility.

Councillor B Moran, Chairman of the Staffing Committee, reported that the Committee had supported the scheme and had made three specific recommendations to the Portfolio Holder which had been taken on board in the report.

#### **RESOLVED**

#### That

- the Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) policy, guidance and payment schedule (Appendices 1 and 2 to the report) be approved;
- 2. the scheme be offered to Council employees from April 2018 for a specific period of time as required; and
- 3. it be noted that the Pay Policy Statement (PPS) 2018/19 progressing to Council on 22<sup>nd</sup> February 2018 will be amended to include the MARS Policy subject to approval.

# 107 A 'PATIENT PASSPORT' - DELIVERING ACCESS TO HEALTH AND CARE RECORDS

The Chairman had agreed that this matter be considered as an urgent item of business as a decision could not wait until the next meeting.

Cabinet considered a report on the Patient Passport project which proposed that the Council act as delivery partner.

### **RESOLVED**

- authorises the Executive Director People (in consultation with the Director of Legal Services) to agree the terms of and enter into an agreement under Section 75 of the National Health Act 2006 to document delivery partner arrangements with the Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group including the receipt of £2.665m Estates and Technology Transformation Fund monies;
- 2. recommends to Council the approval of a Supplementary Revenue Estimate of £2.665m for 2018/19, fully funded from the Estates and Technology Transformation Fund monies; and

3. notes that thereafter officers will take all necessary actions to deliver the electronic care passport scheme.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 5.25 pm

Councillor Rachel Bailey (Chairman)

## CABINET – 6<sup>TH</sup> FEBRUARY 2018

# RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE IN RELATION TO AGENDA ITEMS 8 AND 9

On the 1 February, The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the Third Quarter Review of Performance 2017/18 and the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018-21. The Committee gave consideration to comments made by the respective Scrutiny Committees that had previously considered specific parts of the budget beforehand. Below are comments the Corporate Scrutiny Committee would ask the Cabinet to consider.

# Comment from Corporate Scrutiny on the Third Quarter Review of Performance 2017/18.

The Committee considered that following the review to the capital programme and as part of the business planning process for 2018-21 a number of schemes, totalling £12.3million had been removed from the programme. On further analysis of Appendix 5, the Committee requested detail of £9.4million removed under the budget line for Education Community Hub.

The Committee acknowledged the Council's significant pressures and challenges and noted the much improved position of the predicted overspend being currently estimated at £100K. The Committee congratulated the Directorates and the Finance Team for their continued efforts to find efficiencies to mitigate the overspend whilst continuing to provide services and perform strongly. Council Tax collection was highlighted by the Committee for its continued increased high performance.

# Combined Comments to feed to Cabinet from Corporate Scrutiny in respect of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018-21.

### **Environment and Regeneration:**

- That further consideration be given to the proposed £500k revenue saving relating to the Highways Contract, and that if the saving was to be made, assurance be given that this would relate to efficiencies rather than a reduced level of service. However, it was noted in the Corporate Scrutiny meeting that this saving had since reduced from £500k to £150k.
- That the Car Parking Strategy ensures a Parking Policy that was fair to all residents of the Borough.

### Corporate:

- When the final version is approved, that consideration be given to the wording of the budget line "Changes to Community Libraries" to remove the references to Alderley Edge, Disley and Prestbury and instead to read as 'All libraries'.
- The Committee requested that analysis information be supplied to Corporate Scrutiny to show how the forecasted figures for the Parking Strategy were determined. Members noted the piece of work had not yet been completed and queried how the -£0.355 had been reached.
- That consideration be given to the wording in the Foreword from the Finance and Communication Portfolio Holder specifically the section Community funding from New Homes Bonus. The current wording "...to set aside £2m and allow local communities to determine how this money will be spent." needed to be reconsidered particularly as Corporate Scrutiny had yet to offer suggestions for a scheme to establish how these funds could be spent. Similarly the budget line "New Homes Bonus Community Fund" is worded "...building on the Council's participatory budgeting approach." Could consideration also be given to this wording, as Corporate Scrutiny has not yet carried out the piece of work to offer suggestions for how these funds could be spent?
- That Cabinet is requested to give consideration to the inclusion of Scrutiny in any future pieces of work or considerations on "External income- Fees and Charges".
- That Cabinet is requested to formally acknowledge these comments in the minutes of the meeting.